
 

REGULAR MEETING 

July 19, 2021 
10:00 AM 

 
Albany-Dougherty Government Center 
222 Pine Ave, Room 100, Albany, GA 31701 

 

 
AGENDA 

To comply with the request set forth by the Chairman of Dougherty County, GA and the 
guidelines of the Center for Disease Control (CDC) regarding the Coronavirus (COVID19) 
pandemic and social distancing, face coverings (masks) are optional but encouraged for all 
meeting participants. 

 

The public will also have access to the live meeting by accessing the Dougherty County Georgia 
Government Facebook page at facebook.com/Dougherty.ga.us or viewing the public 
government access channel (Channel 16). 

1. Call the meeting to order by Chairman Christopher Cohilas. 

2. Roll Call. 

3. Invocation. 

4. Pledge of Allegiance. 

5. Minutes. 

a. Consider for action the Minutes of the June 21st Regular Meeting and June 28th 
Special Called Meeting. ACTION: 

6. Delegations (The Commission will hear comments on those items pertaining to Dougherty 
County for which a public hearing has not been held or scheduled. Please be brief, to the 
point, and considerate of time for others). 

a. Tax Director Shonna Josey and Chief Appraiser Joseph McPherson are present to 
discuss the Certified 2021 Tax Digest for the Countywide M&O and Special Services 
District. 

  

1



7. Purchases. 

a. Consider for action the Resolution providing for the execution and acceptance of the 
contract to install Playground Equipment at Radium Overlook Park for the Public 
Works Department from the lowest quoted vendor, GameTime (Longwood, Fl) in the 
amount $26,960.04  subject to execution by the County Administrator.  Funding is 
budgeted in SPLOST VII – County Parks Improvement/Equipment.  ACTION: 

8. Board Appointments.   Appointments are made by nominations.  Pages for each board 
are indicated below. 

a. Albany/ Dougherty Land Bank – Two (2) appointments with a two-year term ending 
July 31, 2023.   Incumbents Thelma Adams-Johnson and Larry Thomas desire 
reappointment.  Two new applicants: Darlene Price and Will Reese.  The County 
Administrator recommends the reappointment of the incumbents. See board packet 
page #1.  ACTION: 

ASPIRE Behavioral Health & Developmental Disability Services Board – One (1) 
appointment with a three-year term ending June 30, 2024.  Incumbent Dr. Eugene 
Sherman desires reappointment.  Two new applicants: Joe Austin and  
Amber Marshall. See board packet page #9. ACTION: 

Department of Family & Children Services – One (1) appointment with a five-year 
term ending June 30, 2026.  Incumbent Dr. Carolyn Hand desires 
reappointment.   One new applicant: Rosalynn Fowler Fliggins.  See board packet 
page #19. ACTION: 

Economic Development Commission – Two (2) appointments with a two–year term 
ending July 31, 2023.  Incumbents Chris Hatcher and Commissioner Clinton Johnson 
desire reappointment (The position held by a Commissioner is appointed by 
the Chairman).  Two new applicants: Fred Ghiglieri and Cedric Jackson. See board 
packet page #31. ACTION: 

Tax Assessors Board – One (1) appointment with an unexpired three–year term 
ending December 31, 2023. Incumbent Warren Grant relocated outside of Dougherty 
County.  Two new applicants: George Anderson and Darlene Price. See board packet 
page #45. Resolution for said appointment attached.  County Attorney  
Spencer Lee will address ACTION: 

9. Additional Business. 

a. Consider for action a Resolution declaring the listed vehicles and equipment as 
surplus and authorizing the sale of same via an online auction.  ACTION: 

b. Consider for action the Resolution declaring the listed equipment as surplus and 
authorize the disposal of same.  This is a listing of equipment damaged by water in 
the Judicial Building for the Sheriff's Office.  ACTION: 

c. Consider for action the Resolution providing for acceptance of the annual 
Cooperative Agreement with Turner Job Corps Center and Dougherty County 
outlining the assistance of the Dougherty County Police Department in performing law 
enforcement duties.  ACTION: 

2



d. Consider for action the recommendation from the Finance Committee to amend the 
FY2022 Budget for the General Fund from $56,087,366 to $58,971,080 and to amend 
the FY2022 Budget for the Special Services District from $8,192,540 to 
$8,598,902.  County Administrator Michael McCoy will address.  ACTION: 

10. Updates from the County Administrator. 

11. Updates from the County Attorney. 

12. Updates from the County Commission. 

13. Adjourn. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of 
the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Coordinator at 229-431-2121 
promptly to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

3



 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

June 21, 2021 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty 

Government Center on June 21, 2021.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided.  

Commissioners present were Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, Clinton Johnson, 

Anthony Jones, and Ed Newsome.  Also present were County Administrator  

Michael McCoy, Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, County Attorney  

Spencer Lee, County Clerk Jawahn Ware, and other staff.  The public and representatives of 

the media participated in person and via live streaming of the meeting on the County’s 

Facebook page and the government public access channel. 

 

After the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Commissioner Johnson, the Chairman 

called for approval of the May 17th Regular Meeting and May 24th Work Session minutes. 

 

Commissioner Newsome moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, 

the minutes were unanimously approved. 

 

The Chairman recognized Mental Health Development Disabilities & Addictive Disease 

Advisory Council - Regional 4 Board Member Gail Davenport to provide an update to the 

Commission on the 2021 - 2022 Statewide Priorities and Strategies.  Ms. Davenport shared 

that the council is required to present to the Board occasionally.  She is proud that many of 

the priorities of Region 4 became state priorities.  After many interviews with people in the 

area, her passion is still to “help the whole person” and help children become healthy.  

Communication and marketing incentives and other needs were shared.  Commissioner Gray 

thanked her for the due diligence that she is doing within Dougherty County.  

 

The Chairman recognized William Wright, representative of AFRAM Tech, Inc. who spoke 

in regards to the presentations made by the Finance Committee.  He alleged that the board 

is breaking Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act by discriminating against organizations 

with similar funding asks.  He also spoke about Commissioners with more senior experience 

needing to chair committees and the need of vetting budgets. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the acceptance and 

execution of the contract to accept the bid for the Dougherty County Health Department Paint 

Project from the lowest responsive and responsible bidder meeting requirements of the bid, 

Affordable Painting and Remodeling (Leesburg, GA) in the amount of $190,000 subject to the 

execution of the contract by the County Administrator.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII.   

 

Commissioner Gray moved for approval.  Commissioner Newsome seconded the motion.  

Under discussion, City of Albany Central Services Director Yvette Fields addressed 

4

Item 5a.



Commissioner Johnson’s concerns.  She shared that bidders are responsible for reading every 

word in the document and that the list provided was done so as a courtesy.  Commissioner 

Johnson shared that Dougherty County's stance is to assist businesses and citizens and the 

scope should not have been revisited because it was rewritten for limited firms to bid.  

Commissioner Gray addressed this by stating that this is a technical issue.  If the apparent low 

bidder had submitted the requested documents, he would have been the low bidder [accepted].  

Ms. Fields shared that in one portion of the documents, the word “may” was listed, but the 

documents that list “must” overrides the oversight.  It was noted that changes were made based 

on the complexity of the project, and this has been done in the past.  Chairman Cohilas 

reviewed the bid package and thought the documents were ambiguous.  He stated as a lawyer, 

he was concerned about litigation from the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.  After 

discussion, Commissioner Jones made a substitute motion to table this item until staff meets 

to review the language and to report back to the Commission with wording that will meet the 

needs of vendors moving forward.  Commissioner Johnson seconded the motion.  The legal 

opinion of Attorney Lee was sought.  Attorney Lee shared that the Commission can reject bids 

for any reason.  Chairman Cohilas made a motion to reject bids and start the process over.  

Commissioner Jones seconded the motion.  Commissioner Gray spoke about the need for the 

project to continue and mentioned that there is a greater need for the project but funding is not 

available for all of the repairs.   Commissioner Gray said that there was not a malicious intent 

to steer the project towards any vendor.  He added that it was unfortunate that our process was 

not intact but [staff] will fix it moving forward.  The motion to reject all bids passed with six 

ayes and one nay by Commissioner Gray.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the acceptance and 

execution of the contract to seal coat the parking lot at the Jail from the lowest responsive and 

responsible bidder meeting specifications, The Surface Masters, Inc. (Marietta, GA) in the 

amount of $54,875 subject to the execution of the contract by the County Administrator.  

Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Jones, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 21-033 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL AND 

ACCEPTANCE OF A PROCUREMENT RECOMMENDATION IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $54,875.00 FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONTRACTING 

WITH THE SURFACE MASTERS, INC. FOR SEAL COATING AT THE 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY JAIL LOCATED AT 1302 EVELYN AVENUE; 

REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN 

CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the acceptance and 

execution of the change order to perform exterior wall and hardscape restoration for the 

Judicial and Government Buildings with the current vendor Waterproofing Contractors, Inc. 

5

Item 5a.



(Norcross, GA) in the amount of $123,647.  Funding is available in SPLOST VII- Judicial 

Building Improvements and Government Center Improvements. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Jones, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 21-034 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE EXECUTION OF CHANGE 

ORDER NUMBER 2 WITH WATERPROOFING CONTRACTORS, 

INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $123,647.00 FOR PERFORMING 

ADDITIONAL EXTERIOR WALL AND HARDSCAPE 

RESTORATION FOR BOTH THE JUDICIAL AND GOVERNMENT 

BUILDINGS; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF 

RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation to purchase one-speed trailer 

for the Dougherty County Police Department from Madden & Associates (Brasleton, GA) 

in the amount of $39,220.  Funding is available in the Special Services District Fund. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration to approve the authorization by the Board of County 

Commissioners for the Planning Commission to review the County’s Solar Regulations for 

the purpose of allowing solar panels on roofs that face public rights of way.  The Albany-

Dougherty Zoning Ordinance requires the County Commission to submit all proposed text 

amendments to the Planning Commission for its review and recommendation. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for the discussion of the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget Request by Coroner  

Michael Fowler.  Mr. Fowler shared that he, the Finance Committee, and other Commissioners 

agreed to a reasonable amount for the budget. 

 

Commissioner Edwards asked that the board consider adding Juneteeth as an observed holiday 

for employees.  Mr. McCoy shared that there are budget implications and we do not observe all 

federal holidays; however, the Board may consider the request next week upon their acceptance 

of the FY budget.  Commissioner Johnson thanked Chairman Cohilas for his leadership.  

Chairman Cohilas offered condolences for the recent losses in Commissioner Gaines and 

Commissioner Jones’ families.  He read a “thank you letter” that was written by Commissioner 

Jones. 

 

6

Item 5a.



There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at  

11:05 a.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

7

Item 5a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES 

 

June 28, 2021 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met for a Special Called Meeting in Room 100 of the Albany-

Dougherty Government Center on June 28, 2021.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and 

called the meeting to order at 10:00 am.  Commissioners present were Victor Edwards,  

Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones, and Ed Newsome.  Also present 

were County Administrator Michael McCoy, Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, 

County Attorney Spencer Lee, County Clerk Jawahn Ware, and other staff.  The public and 

representatives of the media participated in person, via live streaming of the meeting on the 

County’s Facebook page and the government public access channel. 

 

The Chairman called for approval of the June 7th Regular Meeting and June 14th Work Session. 

minutes. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the minutes 

were unanimously approved. 

 

The Chairman recognized William Wright, representative of AFRAM Tech, Inc. to discuss 

building capacity and provide an update on the SBA-PPP program.   Mr. Wright updated the 

Commission on the new supplemental targeted advance available to small businesses and provided 

information on the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan.  He shared concerns about the area’s 

shrinking population.  Per the request of Commissioner Gaines, Mr. Wright will bring back 

comparative data on what counties are spending per capita.  He asked that the Board use objective 

standards when appointing members to the subcommittees and stressed that the Board is not 

adhering to the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

 

The Chairman recognized citizen Paul Murray to provide an update on his request presented to the 

Board on March 29th regarding concerns of group homes in his neighborhood.  The Chairman 

asked that Mr. McCoy provide an update.  Attorney Lee was asked to provide a legal overview of 

a business being in the unincorporated area.  Mr. Lee said that he would obtain the information 

and provide an update on zoning and code enforcement.  A lengthy discussion ensued and the 

Chairman asked that Mr. Lee and Mr. McCoy personally meet with Mr. Murray and directed the 

Clerk to place the update on the next work session.  

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation to purchase one 2022 Ford F-350 

Animal Control Vehicle with animal transport box and emergency equipment for the Dougherty 

County Police Department from the “piggy-back” from the Gwinnett County contract with Wade 

Ford (Smyrna, GA), in the amount of $52,073.47. This purchase will replace the wrecked animal 

control truck.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII.  Assistant County Administrator  

Scott Addison addressed. Chief Kenneth Johnson and City of Albany Procurement Manager  

8

Item 5a.



Mike Trotter were present.  Mr. Addison clarified that insurance money has been received and the 

additional cost will come from SPLOST VII. 

 

Commissioner Gray moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, the motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the acceptance and execution 

of the contract for Phase II Alley Improvements for Public Works from the lowest responsive and 

responsible bidder meeting specifications, Jim Boyd Construction (Albany, GA) in the amount of 

$1,192,037.90 subject to the execution of the contract by the County Administrator.  The project 

will provide grading and paving of five alleys in the unincorporated areas of the County.  Four 

vendors submitted bids with the highest being $1,975,236.42.  Funding is budgeted in T-SPLOST.  

Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison addressed.  Assistant Public Works Director  

Chuck Mathis, Project Engineer Jeremy Brown and City of Albany Procurement Manager  

Mike Trotter were present.  

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Commissioner Newsome seconded the motion.  Under 

discussion, Mr. Brown clarified for Commissioner Edwards that the initial project is still open and 

the punch list is being completed.  The motion passed unanimously.  Resolution 21-035 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL AND 

EXECUTION OF A PROCUREMENT RECOMMENDATION WITH 

JIM BOYD CONSTRUCTION IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,192,037.90 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF GRADING AND PAVING OF FIVE (5) 

ALLEYS IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREA OF DOUGHERTY 

COUNTY; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF 

RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the purchase of the ExecuTime time-keeping software 

for Dougherty County from the sole source vendor, Tyler Technologies (Plano, TX) in the initial 

amount of $97,685.   Tyler Tech is the current vendor for the county's enterprise resource planning 

(ERP) software system.  The software will interface with the current platform to perform time-

keeping functions. The recurring annual fee is $43,342.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VI.  

Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison addressed.  Finance Director Martha Hendley was 

present.  Mr. Addison clarified that the software will standardize time keeping for all employees.  

Mrs. Hendley added that most departments have separate software and that the time is entered 

manually.  A lengthy discussion ensued. 

 

Commissioner Edwards moved for approval.  Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.  The 

motion passed with six ayes and one nay by Commissioner Gaines. 

 

9

Item 5a.



The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation from Superior Court to accept the 

FY 2022 accountability court funding program sub-grant from the Criminal Justice Coordinating 

Council agency in the amount of $278,000.  The Commission approved the application in the 

March 15, 2021 Regular Meeting.  Substance Abuse Coordinator Patricia Griffin shared that this 

is an annual grant. 

 

Commissioner Gray moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, the motion 

passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation from Superior Court to apply for a 

grant from the Criminal Justice Coordinating Council in the amount of $468,107.  The grant will 

provide case management services, housing, drug testing, medication, general business expenses, 

and fund the salary for three full-time employees. There is a local match of $9,033 and funding 

will be provided from the DATE fund. Substance Abuse Coordinator Patricia Griffin was present. 

 

Commissioner Gray moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the motion 

passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the execution of the 

Professional Service Agreement from The Arc of Southwest Georgia for case management 

services and additional program support.  The agreement is a new requirement of the granting 

agency. Substance Abuse Coordinator Patricia Griffin was present to address.   

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Commissioner Edwards seconded the motion.  Under 

discussion, Ms. Griffin answered Commissioner Gaines’ question that there was no cost associated 

with the request.  The motion passed unanimously.  Resolution 21-036 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ACCEPTANCE 

AND EXECUTION OF A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN DOUGHERTY COUNTY AND 

THE ARC OF SOUTHWEST GEORGIA FOR CASE 

MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND ADDITIONAL 

PROGRAM SUPPORT; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR 

PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation from the Finance Committee to 

deny the Coroner’s request for additional compensation ($15,000 salary increase). 

 

Commissioner Gray moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the motion 

passed unanimously.   

 

10

Item 5a.



The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation from the Finance Committee to 

deny the payment of $75 per morgue trip for Deputy Coroners and the Coroner. 

 

Commissioner Gray moved for approval to deny the request.  Commissioner Edwards seconded 

the motion.  The motion passed with six ayes and one nay by Commissioner Gaines. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution authorizing the Intergovernmental 

Agreement with the City of Albany for the 2021 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program 

in the amount of $16,761.  The Agreement stipulates that the County will receive 20% of the total 

award ($83,805).  Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison addressed.  Finance Director 

Martha Hendley was present. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the 

motion passed unanimously.  Resolution 21-037 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ACCEPTANCE AND 

EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF ALBANY AND 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY RELATIVE TO A 2021 BYRNE 

JUSTICE ASSISTANCE  (JAG) PROGAM AWARD; 

REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS 

IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the addition of Juneteeth as a paid holiday.  County 

Administrator Michael McCoy addressed.  HR Director Dominique Hall was present.  Mr. McCoy 

said that this was presented per the request of Commissioner Edwards.  There used to be ten 

holidays with one personal day being removed.  With this addition,  the County’s observed 

holidays will be back to ten. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Gray, the motion 

passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the proposed FY 2021-22 Budget in the amount of 

$73,709,583.  County Administrator Michael McCoy addressed.  Finance Director  

Martha Hendley and Financial Consultant Ed Wall were present.  Per the direction of the Board, 

the Finance Committee reviewed the additional requests.  Mr. McCoy highlighted additional costs 

were for custodians, a HR pay study, the Economic Development Commission (EDC) increase, 

security at Robert Cross Park, and the compromise of the Coroner's requests.  Commissioner 

Gaines asked to see the EDC budget.  Mr. McCoy shared that the City of Albany and Dougherty 

County will now be the funding sources providing $350,000 each.  Commissioner Johnson shared 

that the business community seat on the EDC Board will go away.  This model will now be more 

reflective of the business models in other areas.  He said that the EDC will be able to still do 

fundraisers.  Mr. McCoy shared, based upon Commissioner Edwards’ question, a pay study is 

11

Item 5a.



needed to do a “deeper dive” into the paid survey done.  Ms. Hall also addressed concerns and 

shared that it will take six months to complete. 

 

Commissioner Gray moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the motion 

passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation from the County Attorney to enter 

into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing personnel and potential and pending litigation 

and then to adjourn.  

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the 

motion passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman reminded the Board that there will be  no Commission meeting held on July 5th in 

observance of the Independence Day Holiday. 

 

There being no further business to discuss the Commission entered into executive session at  

11:19 a.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

12

Item 5a.



2021 DIGEST COUNTYWIDE 

13

Item 6a.



7/7/2021 2021 COUNTYWIDE M&O 

Tax Digest Summary 

Parcel Count:  37,820 (Based on 2020 Millage Rate 15.569)

All Properties from Digest

Total Net Real & Personal Property less Utility 1,832,289,377 $28,526,913

Utility 136,541,428 2,125,813

Motor Vehicle 27,271,890 424,596

Mobile Homes 9,063,426 141,108

Timber 451,797 7,034

Heavy Duty Equipment 6,347,556 98,825

Net M&O Digest 2,011,965,474 $31,324,289

Forest land Protection Reimbursement (FLPA) 208,378 $208,378

PILOT 2,086,391 2,086,391

$2,294,769

Total Taxes levied plus PILOT $33,619,058

Page 1

14

Item 6a.



COUNTYWIDE TAXES LEVIED
(Based  2020 Millage Rate)

TYPE
2020 

MILLAGE 
2021 

MILLAGE ACTUAL 2020 PROJECTED 2021 $ CHANGE % CHANGE

M&O 0.015569 0.015569 31,218,527 31,324,289 105,762 0.34%

FLPA (Less 3% FLPA Admin fee) 0.015569 0.015569 211,314 208,378 -2,936 -1.39%

PILOT 2,109,838 2,086,391 -23,447 -1.11%

VPILOT-Phoebe 198,007 0 -198,007 -100.00%

TOTAL 33,737,686 33,619,058 -118,628 -0.35%

15

Item 6a.



COUNTYWIDE 2021 CONSOLIDATION DIGEST

GROUP COUNT ACRES 2020 ASSESSED VALUE 2021 ASSESSED VALUE $CHANGE %CHANGE

Residential ( R ) 73,748 34,271.00 1,031,245,923 1,032,890,527 1,644,604 0.16%

Res Transitional (T) 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00%

Historic (H) 8 1.00 100,000 100,000 0 0.00%

Agricultural (A) 1,137 16,090.00 31,223,607 29,734,344 -1,489,263 -4.77%

Preferential Ag (P) 2 1,594.00 1,088,840 1,088,840 0 0.00%

Conservation Use (V) 348 39,202.00 32,926,212 34,634,100 1,707,888 5.19%

Commercial  (C ) 17,922 9,403.00 799,137,479 804,286,601 5,149,122 0.64%

Industrial (I) 725 3,127.36 112,170,106 117,961,387 5,791,281 5.16%

Utility (U) 49 262.91 113,659,600 136,541,428 22,881,828 20.13%

FLPA (J) 58 68,510.00 41,380,248 41,458,800 78,552 0.19%

Qualified timber (Q) 1 655.00 231,005 237,619 6,614 0.00%

Motor Vehicle 22,354 33,302,130 27,271,890 -6,030,240 -18.11%

Mobile Homes 1,758 9,041,973 9,063,426 21,453 0.24%

Timber 10 0.00 1,495,506 451,797 -1,043,709 -69.79%

Heavy Duty Equipment 8 5,659,131 6,347,556 688,425 12.16%

GROSS DIGEST 118,128 173,116.27 2,212,661,760 2,242,068,315 29,406,555 1.33%

Less Homestead Exemption -207,489,470 -230,102,841 -22,613,371 10.90%

NET M&O DIGEST 2,005,172,290 2,011,965,474 6,793,184 0.34%

Forest Land Prot. (FLPA) 13,992,545 13,798,107 -194,438 -1.39%

16

Item 6a.



2021 DIGEST COUNTYWIDE HOMESTEAD & PROPERTY EXEMPTIONS
7/7/2021

CODE COUNT 2020 M&O AMT 2021 M&O AMT $CHANGE %CHANGE

L1-Local 1 279 0 0 0 100.00%

S1-Regular Homestead 7,060 14,701,543 14,117,543 -584,000 -3.97%

S3-Elderly 62GI<10,000 333 652,000 666,000 14,000 2.15%

S4-Elderly 65NI<10000 2,927 11,510,800 11,708,000 197,200 1.71%

S5-Disabled Veteran 360 16,118,610 20,451,869 4,333,259 26.88%

SC-Age 65 State Tax 369 804,000 738,000 -66,000 -8.21%

SD-Age 65 100% Disabled Vet 138 6,390,743 6,226,646 -164,097 -2.57%

SS-Surviving Spouse 17 386,204 886,272 500,068 129.48%

SE-Age 65 Surviving Spouse V 1 20,040 20,040 0 0.00%

SA-Preferential Ag 2 272,210 272,210 0 0.00%

SF-Freeport 104 101,893,692 119,854,333 17,960,641 17.63%

SH-Historical 0 0 0 0 0.00%

SJ-Forest Land Protection Act 57 27,906,537 27,596,213 -310,324 -1.11%

SP-Personal Property<7500 3,116 3,750,759 3,439,559 -311,200 -8.30%

ST-Transitional Use 0 0 0 0 0.00%

SV-Conservation Use 322 23,082,332 24,126,156 1,043,824 4.52%

TOTAL 15,085 207,489,470 230,102,841 22,613,371 10.90%

17

Item 6a.



COUNTYWIDE - 2021 TAX DIGEST EXEMPT PROPERTIES

2020 
Count

2021 
Count Variance 2020 Tax Year 2021 Tax Year $ Change % Change

E0  Non Profit Homes for the Aged 27 27 06,007,676 6,007,676 0 0.00%

E1  Public Property 2,369 2,407 38428,717,577 439,200,853 10,483,276 2.45%

E2  Places of Religious Worship 1,020 1,038 1831,275,207 31,443,094 167,887 0.54%

E3  Property Used for Charitable 401 401 08,322,489 8,863,597 541,108 6.50%

E4  Places of Religious Burial 21 21 0519,800 519,800 0 0.00%

E5  Charity Hospitals 229 215 -1485,013,457 84,204,537 -808,920 -0.95%

E6  Educational Institutions 150 148 -26,829,332 6,425,852 -403,480 -5.91%

E8  Farm Products in hands of Producer 2 3 1165,016 333,876 168,860 102.33%

E9  Other Exempt 40 40 01,424,156 1,424,156 0 0.00%

Total 4,259 4,300 41568,274,710 578,423,441 10,148,731 1.79%

18

Item 6a.



19

Item 6a.



NOTICE

The Dougherty County Board of Commissioners does hereby announce that the millage rate will be set at a meeting to be held at the

(Place of Meeting) on (Date of Meeting) at (Time of Meeting) and pursuant to the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 48-5-32 does hereby publish the

following presentation of the current year's tax digest and levy, along with the history of the tax digest and levy for the past five years.

CURRENT 2021 PROPERTY TAX DIGEST AND 5 YEAR HISTORY OF LEVY

C

o

u

n

t

y

w

i

d

e

A

r

e

a

COUNTY WIDE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

V

A

L

U

E

Real & Personal 2,085,405,230 2,097,191,016 2,125,915,196 2,168,331,227 2,163,163,020 2,198,933,646

Motor Vehicles 80,157,490 60,070,870 45,909,650 38,593,720 33,302,130 27,271,890

Mobile Homes 8,796,712 8,732,582 8,368,852 9,413,561 9,041,973 9,063,426

Timber - 100% 2,587,274 2,367,102 1,731,769 879,982 1,495,506 451,797

Heavy Duty Equipment 496,598 199,499 208,193 4,441,611 5,659,131 6,347,556

Gross Digest 2,177,443,304 2,168,561,069 2,182,133,660 2,221,660,101 2,212,661,760 2,242,068,315

Less Exemptions 200,395,571 210,015,043 226,144,963 230,356,351 207,489,470 230,102,841

NET DIGEST VALUE 1,977,047,733 1,958,546,026 1,955,988,697 1,991,303,750 2,005,172,290 2,011,965,474

R

A

T

E

Gross Maintenance & Operation Millage 15.7150 15.6440 18.4690 18.7020 19.0800 18.9860

Less Rollback                   (Local Option Sales Tax) 3.1380 3.0750 2.9000 3.1330 3.5110 3.4170

NET M&O MILLAGE RATE 12.5770 12.5690 15.5690 15.5690 15.5690 15.5690

TAX

TOTAL M&O TAXES LEVIED $24,865,329 $24,616,965 $30,452,788 $31,002,608 $31,218,527 $31,324,290
Net Tax $ Increase ($473,046) ($248,364) $5,835,823 $549,820 $215,919 $105,763 
Net Tax % Increase -1.87% -1.00% 23.71% 1.81% 0.70% 0.34%

20

Item 6a.



21

Item 6a.



Press Release 

 
                PRESS RELEASE ANNOUNCING A PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX INCREASE 

The Dougherty County Board of Commissioners today announces its intention to increase 

the property taxes it will levy this year by .35% over the rollback millage rate for the 

Countywide District. 

Each year, the board of tax assessors is required to review the assessed value 

for property tax purposes of taxable property in the county. When the trend 

of prices on properties that have recently sold in the county indicate there 

has been an increase in the fair market value of any specific property, the 

board of tax assessors is required by law to re-determine the value of such 

property and adjust the assessment. This is called a reassessment. 

When the total digest of taxable property is prepared, Georgia law requires that a rollback 

millage rate must be computed that will produce the same total revenue on the current 

year’s digest that last year’s millage rate would have produced had no reassessments 

occurred. 

The budget tentatively adopted by the Dougherty County Board of Commissioners requires 

that a millage rate higher than the rollback millage rate, therefore, before the Dougherty 

County Board of Commissioners may finalize the tentative budget and set a final millage 

rate, Georgia law requires three public hearings to be held to allow the public an 

opportunity to express their opinions on the increase. 

All concerned citizens are invited to the public hearings on this tax increase to be held at 

Government Center, 222 Pine Avenue, Albany, Georgia  

Monday, August 09, 2021 at 10:00 A.M., Room 100 
Monday, August 09, 2021, 2021 at 6:00 P.M., Room 100 
Monday, August 16, 2021 at 10:00 A.M., Room 100 

 

22

Item 6a.



 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY 
NOTICE OF PROPERTY TAX INCREASE 

 

The Dougherty County Board of Commissioners has tentatively adopted a 

millage rate, which will require an increase in property taxes by .35 % over the 

rollback millage rate for Countywide Tax Digest. 

All concerned citizens are invited to the public hearing on this tax increase to be 

held at the Government Center in Room 100, 222 Pine Avenue, Albany, Georgia 

Monday, August 09, 2021 at 10:00 A.M., Room 100 
Monday, August 09, 2021 at 6:00 P.M., Room 100 
Monday, August 16, 2021 at 10:00 A.M., Room 100 
 

This tentative increase will result in a millage rate of 15.569 mills, an increase of 

.055 mills. Without this tentative tax increase, the millage rate will be no more 

than 15.514. The proposed tax increase for a home with a fair market value of 

$100,000 is approximately $2.09 and the proposed tax increase for non-

homestead property with a fair market value of $150,000 is approximately 

$3.30. 
23

Item 6a.



 

MORE INFORMATION  

REGARDING THE “TAX INCREASE” NOTICE 

BY THE 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 Is the Dougherty County Board of Commissioners increasing the millage rate? 

NO.   The proposed 2021 millage rates for the Countywide Digest (15.569) and the Special Services Digest 

(9.173) will remain the same. 

If the County Commission is not increasing the millage rates, then why is it advertising a “tax increase”? 
 
The valuation of the taxable real property in Dougherty County has increased due to the reassessments. 

Because of the increase, the County Commission is required by State law to advertise it as a “tax increase”, 

even when the millage rate remains the same. 

If the tax assessed value of my property is the same as last year, will I pay more in property taxes this year? 

No.  If your property value is the same as last year, the amount of taxes you pay will remain the same. 

 

 24

Item 6a.



2021 DIGEST 
SPECIAL SERVICES 

DISTRICT 

25

Item 6a.



07/07/21 SPECIAL SERVICES DISTRICT

2021 Tax Digest Summary

PARCEL COUNT: 9,322 (Based on 2020 Millage Rate 9.173)

Revenue Taxes Levied 9.173

All Properties from Digest

Total Net Real & Personal Property Less Utility 435,580,196 $3,995,577

Utility 113,414,669 1,040,353

Motor Vehicle 6,881,910 63,128

Mobile Homes 5,480,603 50,274

Timber 389,884 3,576

Heavy Duty Equipment 461,468 4,233

Net M&O Digest 562,208,730 $5,157,141

Forest Land Protection Reimbursement (FLPA) $166,826

PILOT (P&G) 426,358

PILOT BIO-GREEN (2017-2037) 20 yrs) 80,070

PILOT Dougherty County Solar 64,378

$570,806

Total Taxes levied plus PILOT $5,894,773
26

Item 6a.



SPECIAL SERVICES TAX 
LEVIED
(Based on 2020 Millage 
Rate)

TYPE      
2020 
MILAGE

2021 
MILAGE ACTUAL 2020

PROJECTED 
2021 $ CHANGE

% 
CHANGE

M&O        0.009173 0.009173 $5,022,814 $5,157,141 134,327 2.67%

FLPA (Less 3% Admin Fee)      0.009173 0.009173 172,189 166,826 -5,363 -3.11%

PILOT P&G 426,358 426,358 0 0.00%

PILOT BIO-Green 80,070 80,070 0 0.00%

PILOT Dougherty County Solar 56,360 64,378 8,018 0.00%

$5,757,791 $5,894,773 136,982 2.38%

Total PILOT 570,806

27

Item 6a.



SPECIAL SERVICES 2021 CONSOLIDATION DIGEST

GROUP COUNT ACRES 2020 ASSESSED VALUE 2021 ASSESED VALUE $ CHANGE % CHANGE

Residential 20,288 24,206.00 326,569,578 327,079,021 509,443 0.16%

Res. Transitional 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00%

Historic 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00%

Industrial 120 1,790.00 34,321,007 42,642,052 8,321,045 24.24%

Agricultural 1,094 15,446.00 30,110,447 28,592,012 -1,518,435 -5.04%

Preferential Ag 2 1,594.00 1,088,840 1,088,840 0 0.00%

Conservation Use 327 36,886.00 31,251,492 32,657,820 1,406,328 4.50%

Commercial 1,544 4,159.00 63,967,830 61,769,212 -2,198,618 -3.44%

Utility 26 258.91 91,897,104 113,414,669 21,517,565 23.41%

FLPA(J) 58 68,510.00 41,380,248 41,458,800 78,552 0.19%

FLPA FMV(F) 58 68,510.00 41,458,800 41,458,800 0 0.00%

Qualified Timber (Q) 1 655.00 231,005 237,619 6,614 0.00%

Motor Vehicle 6,695 0.00 8,438,370 6,881,910 -1,556,460 -18.45%

Mobile Homes 836 0.00 5,380,578 5,480,603 100,025 1.86%

Timber 100% 8 0.00 1,457,187 389,884 -1,067,303 -73.24%

Heavy Duty Equip 1 0.00 759,359 461,468 -297,891 -39.23%

GROSS DIGEST 31,000 153,504.91 636,853,045 662,153,910 25,300,865 3.97%

LESS HOMESTEAD EXEMPT -89,288,019 -99,945,180 -10,657,161 11.94%

NET M&O DIGEST 547,565,026 562,208,730 14,643,704 2.67%

Forest Land Prot. (FLPA) 19,351,837 18,749,139 -602,698 -3.11%

28

Item 6a.



PARCEL COUNT: 9,322
2021 DIGEST HOMESTEAD & PROPERTY EXEMPTIONS

7/7/2021

CODE COUNT 2020 M&O AMT 2021 M&O AMT $CHANGE %CHANGE

L1-Local 1 0 0 0 0 0.00%

S1-Reg Homestead 2,279 4,717,543 4,555,543 -162,000 -3.43%

S3-Elderly 62GI<10000 108 210,000 216,000 6,000 2.86%

S4-Elderly 65NI<10000 850 3,340,000 3,400,000 60,000 1.80%

S5-Disabled Veterans 144 7,403,328 9,509,985 2,106,657 28.46%

SC-Age 65 State Tax 90 176,000 180,000 4,000 2.27%

SD-Age 65 100% Vet 59 3,075,299 3,048,931 -26,368 -0.86%

SG-Unmarrid FF Police 0 0 0 0 0.00%

SS-Surviving Spouse 5 84,040 293,616 209,576 249.38%

SE-USS Service Members 1 20,040 20,040 0 0.00%

SA-Preferential Ag Cov 2 272,210 272,210 0 0.00%

SF-Freeport 12 19,619,214 27,651,014 8,031,800 40.94%

SH-Residential Hist 0 0 0 0 0.00%

SJ-FLPA 57 27,906,537 27,596,213 -310,324 -1.11%

SP-PP<7500 619 649,710 599,165 -50,545 -7.78%

ST-Residential Trans 0 0 0 0 0.00%

SV-Conservation Use 301 21,814,098 22,602,463 788,365 3.61%

SY-HD Equip 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Total 4,527 89,288,019 99,945,180 10,657,161 11.94%
29

Item 6a.



SPECIAL SERVICES/UNINCORPORATED  - 2021 TAX DIGEST EXEMPT PROPERTIES              7/07/2021

2020 
Count

2021 
Count Variances 2020 Tax Year 2021 Tax Year $ Change % Change

E0 Non Profit Homes for the Aged 0 0 0 0 0 0

E1 Public Property 377 385 8 117,245,332 166,686,423 49,441,091 42.17%

E2 Places of Religious Worship 255 255 0 9,060,621 9,174,089 113,468 1.25%

E3 Property Used for Charitable 16 16 0 671,000 671,000 0 0.00%

E4 Places of Religious Burial 9 9 0 182,520 182,520 0 0.00%

E5 Charity Hospitals 5 0 -5 280,880 0 -280,880 -100.00%

E6 Educational Institutions 22 22 0 492,632 492,632 0 0.00%

E8 Farm Products in Hands of Producer 1 1 0 30,058 26,975 -3,083 0.00%

E9 Other Exempt 14 14 0 1,068,036 1,068,036 0 0.00%

TOTAL 699 702 3 129,031,079 178,301,675 49,270,596 38.19%

30

Item 6a.



31

Item 6a.



NOTICE

The Dougherty County Board of Commissioners does hereby announce that the millage rate will be set at a meeting to be held at the

(Place of Meeting) on (Date of Meeting) at (Time of Meeting) and pursuant to the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 48-5-32 does hereby publish the

following presentation of the current year's tax digest and levy, along with the history of the tax digest and levy for the past five years.

CURRENT 2021 PROPERTY TAX DIGEST AND 5 YEAR HISTORY OF LEVY

U

N

I

N

C

O

R

P

O

R

A

T

E

D

A

R

E

A

UNINCORPORATED 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

V

A

L

U

E

Real & Personal 576,676,760 579,163,660 596,897,109 613,649,153 620,817,551 648,940,045

Motor Vehicles 21,026,360 16,450,970 12,410,160 10,185,000 8,438,370 6,881,910

Mobile Homes 4,849,617 4,884,373 4,493,698 5,481,363 5,380,578 5,480,603

Timber - 100% 2,508,979 2,367,102 1,728,961 879,982 1,457,187 389,884

Heavy Duty Equipment 261,860 49,456 136,727 345,150 759,359 461,468

Gross Digest 605,323,576 602,915,561 615,666,655 630,540,648 636,853,045 662,153,910

Less Exemptions 93,505,853 92,382,590 91,916,398 88,017,108 89,288,019 99,945,180

NET DIGEST VALUE 511,817,723 510,532,971 523,750,257 542,523,540 547,565,026 562,208,730

R

A

T

E

Gross Maintenance & Operation Millage 10.9400 11.0480 11.1290 11.2090 11.3360 11.4100

Less Rollback                   (Local Option Sales Tax) 1.7560 1.8750 1.9560 2.0360 2.1630 2.2370

NET M&O MILLAGE RATE 9.1840 9.1730 9.1730 9.1730 9.1730 9.1730

TAX

TOTAL M&O TAXES LEVIED $4,700,534 $4,683,119 $4,804,361 $4,976,568 $5,022,814 $5,157,141

Net Tax $ Increase ($69,605) ($17,415) $121,242 $172,207 $46,246 $134,327 

Net Tax % Increase -1.46% -0.37% 2.59% 3.58% 0.93% 2.67%
32

Item 6a.



33

Item 6a.



Press Release 

 
                PRESS RELEASE ANNOUNCING A PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX INCREASE 

The Dougherty County Board of Commissioners today announces its intention to increase 

the property taxes it will levy this year by .30% over the rollback millage rate for the Special 

Services District-Unincorporated. 

Each year, the board of tax assessors is required to review the assessed value 

for property tax purposes of taxable property in the county. When the trend 

of prices on properties that have recently sold in the county indicate there 

has been an increase in the fair market value of any specific property, the 

board of tax assessors is required by law to re-determine the value of such 

property and adjust the assessment. This is called a reassessment. 

When the total digest of taxable property is prepared, Georgia law requires that a rollback 

millage rate must be computed that will produce the same total revenue on the current 

year’s digest that last year’s millage rate would have produced had no reassessments 

occurred. 

The budget tentatively adopted by the Dougherty County Board of Commissioners requires 

that a millage rate higher than the rollback millage rate, therefore, before the Dougherty 

County Board of Commissioners may finalize the tentative budget and set a final millage 

rate, Georgia law requires three public hearings to be held to allow the public an 

opportunity to express their opinions on the increase. 

All concerned citizens are invited to the public hearings on this tax increase to be held at 

Government Center, 222 Pine Avenue, Room 100, Albany, Georgia  

Monday, August 09, 2021 at 10:00 A.M., Room 100 
Monday, August 09, 2021 at 6:00 P.M., Room 100 
Monday, August 16, 2021 at 10:00 A.M., Room 100 

 

34

Item 6a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY
NOTICE OF PROPERTY TAX INCREASE

The Dougherty County Board of Commissioners has tentatively adopted a 

millage rate, which will require an increase in property taxes by .30 % over the 

rollback millage rate for Special Services District-Unincorporated Tax Digest.

All concerned citizens are invited to the public hearing on this tax increase to be 

held at the Government Center in Room 100, 222 Pine Avenue, Albany, Georgia

Monday, August 09, 2021 at 10:00 A.M., Room 100
Monday, August 09, 2021 at 6:00 P.M., Room 100
Monday, August 16, 2021 at 10:00 A.M., Room 100

This tentative increase will result in a millage rate of 9.173 mills, an increase of 

.027 mills. Without this tentative tax increase, the millage rate will be no more 

than 9.146. The proposed tax increase for a home with a fair market value of 

$100,000 is approximately $1.03 and the proposed tax increase for non-

homestead property with a fair market value of $150,000 is approximately 

$1.62.
35

Item 6a.



2021 TAX DIGEST PROCESSING TIMELINE

Tuesday, April 27, 2021 Assessors mail Annual Assessment Notices (NOA) for 2021 
property tax valuation.

Friday, June 11, 2021 Citizens last date to file an appeal on the 2021 tax value. 
(Annual Notice of Assessment).

Wednesday, July 07, 2021 Assessors certified and finalized the 2021 Tax Digest and 
submit to Tax Director

Thursday, July 08, 2021 Tax Director submits 2021 tax digest numbers to Tax 
Authorities to prepare five-year history advertising and tax 
increase public hearing if needed.  

Monday, July 19, 2021 Commission Session -Tax Director presents 2021 tax digest 
and advertisements for five-year history & property tax 
increase (if needed) for approval.

Sunday, July 25, 2021 Advertise Five Year History in the Albany Herald & County 
Website. Also, advertise public hearing for property tax 
increase (if needed). 

Monday, August 09, 2021 Commission Work Session at 10:00 A.M. 
1st Public Hearing held 

2nd Public Hearing held at 6:00 P.M. 
Monday, August 16, 2021 Commission Regular Session at 10:00 A.M. 

3rd Public Hearing held in Room 100 
Commission adopts 2021 Millage Rates for the County-Wide 
General Fund and Special Services District

Monday, August 23, 2021 Tax Director submits County 2021 Tax Digest to the 
Department of Revenue

Wednesday, September 01, 2021 Deadline for County to submit Tax Digest for approved by 
Department of Revenue 36

Item 6a.



 

                 Scott Addison 
         Assistant County Administrator 

 

 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                          ADMINISTRATION 

        

 

 
222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 office | 229.438.3967 fax  

dougherty.ga.us 

Agenda Item 

 

Date:   July 6, 2021 

 

Meeting Date:             July 12, 2021 

 

Subject/Title: Install New Playground Equipment at Radium Overlook Park. 

 

Presented for:  Decision 

 

Presenter:                   Scott Addison, Assistant County Administrator 

 

Statement of Issue 

The Public Works Department is requesting to install Playground Equipment at Radium Overlook 

Park. 

 

History/Facts and Issues  

The Dougherty County Public Works Department is requesting to install Playground Equipment 

at Radium Overlook Park for patrons to utilize. Three vendors were contacted to provide quotes.  

The following responses were received: GameTime (Longwood, Fl) $26,960.04; Miracle 

Recreation (Monett, MO) $35,531.23; and Playworld (Huntersville, NC) $40,233.34.    

 

Recommended Action 

Recommend that Dougherty County Commission accepts the quote from GameTime (Longwood, 

Fl) for a total expenditure of $26,960.04.  

 

Funding Source 

SPLOST VII – County Parks Improvement/Equipment 

37

Item 7a.



38

Item 8a.



39

Item 8a.



40

Item 8a.



41

Item 8a.



42

Item 8a.



43

Item 8a.



44

Item 8a.



45

Item 8a.



46

Item 8a.



47

Item 8a.



48

Item 8a.



49

Item 8a.



50

Item 8a.



51

Item 8a.



52

Item 8a.



53

Item 8a.



54

Item 8a.



55

Item 8a.



56

Item 8a.



57

Item 8a.



58

Item 8a.



59

Item 8a.



60

Item 8a.



61

Item 8a.



62

Item 8a.



63

Item 8a.



64

Item 8a.



65

Item 8a.



66

Item 8a.



67

Item 8a.



68

Item 8a.



69

Item 8a.



70

Item 8a.



71

Item 8a.



72

Item 8a.



73

Item 8a.



74

Item 8a.



75

Item 8a.



76

Item 8a.



77

Item 8a.



78

Item 8a.



79

Item 8a.



80

Item 8a.



81

Item 8a.



82

Item 8a.



83

Item 8a.



84

Item 8a.



85

Item 8a.



86

Item 8a.



87

Item 8a.



88

Item 8a.



89

Item 8a.



90

Item 8a.



91

Item 8a.



92

Item 8a.



93

Item 8a.



94

Item 8a.



95

Item 8a.



Description Unit Number Condition

2002 Ford Explorer 59-0228 Poor

2011 Chevrolet Traverse 32-22-1101 Poor

2000 Chevrolet Impala 32-22-0080 Poor

2003 Chevrolet Tahoe 32-22-0383 Fair

2005 Ford F150 32-22-0536 Poor

2006 Chrysler 300C 32-22-0679 Fair

Description Unit Number Condition

Black High Back Chairs (5) Fair

Maroon Chairs (3) Fair

Canon Copier KPB80806 Fair

HP Office Jet 5610 CN5B3DE270 Good

HP Laserjet 1300 Printer CNCK103181 Fair

HP Scanjet G 4010 CN16HAC0T8 Fair

Wood Printer Stand Fair

Red Secretarial Chair Fair

3 Drawer File Cabinet (2) Poor

Purple High Back Chair Poor

Black High Back Chair Fair

HP Laserjet 5si Copier USBK136928 Fair

Long Wood Grain Table Poor

HP Laserjet 1320 Printer CNDC5220GT Fair

HP Laserjet P2015 CNB1R99120 Fair

Purple Secretarial Chair Fair

Dell Optiplex 380 Computer (3) 8PWXYQ1, 8HD0KQ1, 8HCYJQ1 Fair

Dell Optiplex 3020 Computers (6) BY4BX12, BY4CX12, 6S3QS52, 6S3SS52, BY3FX12, BY4FX12 Fair

Dell Deminsion 2400 JHCKT31 Fair

Dell Latitude E6410 4RJRLN1 Fair

HP Officejet Pro 8600 CN351BVHYD Fair

HP Laserjet P2035 VNB3D74882 Fair

ADDU

DA's Office

Surplus Listing for Approval  07.19.2021
96

Item 9a.



Description Unit Number Condition

HP Laserjet P2015 CNB1R99128 Fair

HP Laserjet 1320 (2) CNBJK64116, CNBJK64128 Fair

HP Laserjet Enterprise M609 CNBCK870MW Fair

Fellowes Powershred 220C-2 Shredder Fair

Universal UNV-38024 Shredder Fair

Purple Office Chairs (6) Good

Tan Office Chairs (2) Good

Gray Office Chairs Good

Gray Office Chairs Good

Description Unit Number Condition

Laryngoscope Blades (50) 2874 Poor

Laryngoscope Handles (11) 2874 Poor

1200cc Suction Canisters (5) 2875 Poor

MDS Matrix Fracture Pack 2876 Poor

Bayer Glucose Monitors (5) Poor

HP Officejet Mobile Printer (5) 2877 Fair

Hazmat DQE Decon in a Bag (8) 2878, 2879 Poor

Garmin Nuvi 3.5" Screen (13) 2880 Poor

EDCO Laptop Vehicle Mount 2881 Poor

Allied EVP100 Ventilator (2) 2882 Poor

Canon CP1200D Adding Machine 2883 Fair

Whelen Light Bar Top Mount W/Red & White lights 2884 Poor

Truck Diamond Plate Toolbox 2885 Fair

Tan Office Chair IMG2884 Poor

Metal Chair IMG2885 Poor

Gray Office Chair IMG2886 Poor

Lifepak 12 Cardiac Monitors (8) 2690 Fair

Twin Box Spring (8) 2897 Poor

Metal Headboards and Frames (4) 2891 Poor

DA's Office Continued

EMS

Surplus Listing for Approval  07.19.2021
97

Item 9a.



Description Unit Number Condition

Brown Loveseat (2) 2893 Poor

Brown Couch (2) 2903 Poor

Hitachi LCD Projector CP-A220N Fair

International Trauma Life Support Manuals (10) Poor

Tan Couch Poor

Whelen Siren Control Boxes (2) 2876, 2877 Poor

Whelen Siren Speaker (2) 2879, 2880 Poor

Oxygen Bottle Mount 2881 Poor

Portable Disaster Cots (6) Fair

XTS5000 Radio Battery Charger (9) 2923 Poor

XTS5000 Radio Battery Charger (9) 2923 Poor

XTS6000 Radio Charger 2923 Poor

XTS Radios (19) 2927 Poor

XTS5000 Radio Batteries (26) 2924 Poor

XTS6000 Radio Battery 2925 Poor

Description Unit Number Condition

High Speed Burner Poor

Janitorial Carts (2) Poor

Vacuum Cleaners (2) Poor

Sony VCR Poor

HP Printers (2) Poor

Dell Laptop Screen Poor

Description Unit Number Condition

Pink Rolling Chairs (2) Poor

RCA TV (2) Poor

Yellow Bookshelf Poor

Black Shelf Poor

EMS Continued

Facilities Management

Police Dept

Surplus Listing for Approval  07.19.2021
98

Item 9a.



Description Unit Number Condition

Wooden Block Poor

WD My Book WMC4NDE8U72X Poor

Brown Trays (3) Poor

Yellow Chairs (9) Poor

Green Chairs (7) Poor

Orange Chairs (7) Poor

Brown Rolling Chair Poor

Red Chairs (7) Poor

Gray Chair Poor

Pink Chairs (2) Poor

Black Clothes Rack Poor

Shredder Poor

Tan Desk Poor

Keyboard Poor

E-Print Printers (12) Poor

Motorola Magatac (6) Will be provided Poor

Motorola Spectrum (8) Will be provided Poor

Motorola Syntox-9000 621HRA2098 Poor

Whelen 4 Outlet Power Supply (7) Will be provided Poor

Whelen Series Plus CSP690 (6) Will be provided Poor

Whelen UPS 64C (2) 10216, 14612 Poor

Whelen SPS-660 DHE22450 Poor

Whelen UPS-158 4400 Poor

Silver Series 660L (4) Poor

Ricochet Power Supply Poor

PA640 Federal Signal Corp (14) Poor

True View Plus (2) ICV781003393, ICV781003392 Poor

DVD True View Plus (2) ICV104603393, ICV104603392 Poor

Whelen Med Rectangular Blue Lights (4) PJG81332, PGF15513, PJD33958, PJG81391 Poor

Police Dept Continued

Surplus Listing for Approval  07.19.2021
99

Item 9a.



Description Unit Number Condition

Perfect Seal Embosser Electric Seal Fair

Hp Deskjet 6940 COA Tag 07749 Poor

HP Color Laserjet Pro M452nw (4) COA Tag 0609, 0834, 0748, 0844 Poor

Keyboard Fair

Mouse (2) Fair

Dell Flat Panel Monitor (6) COA Tag 0833, 0842, 0830, 0821, 0655, 0839 Fair

Fi-7160 Scanner COA Tag 01794 Fair

Fujitsu Scanner COA Tag 0654 Fair

CPU (7) COA Tag 0822, 0835, 0831, 0843, 0565, 0841, 0838 Fair

Rolling Low Chairs (2) Fair

Chairs (3) Fair

Laserjet Pro 400 Color COA Tag 0837 Poor

Dell Keyboard Poor

Dell Monitor COA Tag Poor

Dell CPU Optiplex 3080 COA Tag 0581 Poor

Mouse (2) Poor

Fi-6130 (2) COA Tag 067, 0751 Fair

305a Black Fair

305a Magenta Fair

305a Cyan Fair

305a Yellow Fair

Description Unit Number Condition

Sony 27" TV 4379751 Fair

Brown Leather Office Chairs (2) Poor

Probate Court

Public Defender's Office

Surplus Listing for Approval  07.19.2021
100

Item 9a.



Description Unit Number Condition

2007 Pontiac Grand Prix 32-22-0778 Poor

1999 Mitsubishi Mirage 32-22-9906 Poor

2009 Nissan Altima 32-22-0988 Poor

Description Unit Number Condition

Havis Docking Station (2) 0216-D400-2091, 0215-D400-2148 Fair

Ricoh Printer Y847P00376 Fair

HP Deskjet Printer 6940 (2) C8970A Fair

Computer w/Monitor 6TXMTR1 Fair

Computer w/Monitor 6TXQTR1 Fair

Computer w/Monitor 6TWRTR1 Fair

Discription Unit Number Condition

Ricoh Copier MP2851 Poor

State Court

Public Works

Sheriff's Office

Surplus Listing for Approval  07.19.2021
101

Item 9a.



A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING AS SURPLUS THE  

ATTACHED LIST OF EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES; 

PROVIDING FOR DISPOSAL OF OR SALE OF SAME VIA  

AN ONLINE AUCTION; REPEALING PRIOR RESOLUTIONS 

IN CONFLICT; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

 WHEREAS, Dougherty County, Georgia owns the attached list of equipment and 

vehicles; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County has neither an immediate or foreseeable future use for 

said equipment and vehicles; 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of 

Dougherty County, Georgia and IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by Authority of same: 

 

 SECTION I.  That the equipment and vehicles specified in the list attached 

hereto are hereby declared surplus and the County Administrator is authorized to dispose 

of or to sell the same via an online auction. 

 

 SECTION II.  That the County Administrator or County Clerk are authorized to 

execute documents necessary to effectuate sale of said equipment and vehicles. 

 

 SECTION III.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are 

repealed.  

 

  

     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF  

     DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

     

     By: ____________________________ 

            CHAIRMAN 

 

 

_________________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

Adopted:  July 19, 2021 

102

Item 9a.



A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING AS SURPLUS THE  

ATTACHED LIST OF EQUIPMENT 

PROVIDING FOR DISPOSAL OF SAME  

REPEALING PRIOR RESOLUTIONS 

IN CONFLICT; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

 WHEREAS, Dougherty County, Georgia owns the attached list of equipment and;  

 

 WHEREAS, the County has neither an immediate or foreseeable future use for 

said equipment; 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of 

Dougherty County, Georgia and IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by Authority of same: 

 

 SECTION I.  That the equipment specified in the list attached hereto are hereby 

declared surplus and the County Administrator is authorized to dispose of the same. 

 

 SECTION II.  That the County Administrator or County Clerk are authorized to 

execute documents necessary to dispose of said equipment. 

 

 SECTION III.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are 

repealed.  

 

  

     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF  

     DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

     

     By: ____________________________ 

            Christopher S. Cohilas 

 

 

_________________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

Adopted:  July 19, 2021 

103

Item 9b.



Description Unit Number Condition

Smith's X-Ray Machine 86502 Fair

Garrett Metal Detector 49480972 Fair

Dahua Thermal Camera System 6F070CEPAJ00041 Fair

Dahua Thermal Camera System 6F078GAGAGAZ00005 Fair

Dahua Thermal Harddrive 6G050B4PAZ48FC5 Fair

Samsung Monitor BZ8434SN735910V Fair

Panasonic Desk Phone 9ABKH101128 Fair

Gray Stool Chairs (2) Fair

Black Stool Chair Fair

Items damaged in Judicial Building Flood

Sheriff's Office-Judicial Services

Surplus Listing for  approval 07.19.2021
104

Item 9b.



A RESOLUTION 
ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ACCEPTANCE AND EXECUTION OF AN ANNUAL 
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA AND TURNER JOB 

CORPS CENTER OUTLINING THE ASSISTANCE OF THE DOUGHERTY COUNTY POLICE 
DEPARTMENT IN PERFORMING LAW ENFORCEMENT DUTIES AT THE TURNER JOB CORPS 
CENTER LOCATION; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT 

HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County is hereby desirous of 
approving and executing a Cooperative Agreement between Dougherty County, Georgia and 
Turner Job Corps Center outlining the assistance of the Dougherty County Police Department in 
performing Law Enforcement duties at the Turner Job Corps Center location. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, 
Georgia and it is hereby resolved by Authority of same as follows: 
 
 SECTION I    The attached Cooperative Agreement between Dougherty County, Georgia 
and Turner Job Corps Center providing for outlining the assistance of the Dougherty County Police 
Department in performing Law Enforcement duties at the Turner Job Corps Center location is 
hereby approved and the County Administrator of Dougherty County is hereby authorized to 
execute same.  The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute any and all other 
documents necessary to full implementation of said Cooperative Agreement. 
 
 SECTION II    All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 This the 19th day of July, 2021. 
 
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
       BY:___________________________ 
             Christopher S. Cohilas, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
County Clerk 

105

Item 9c.



106

Item 9c.



107

Item 9c.



108

Item 9c.



109

Item 9c.



56,087,366$              
---American Rescue Plan Transfer to General Fund - Premium Pay 2,546,058$                

6,686,700         
---Increase Fund Balance Use for Lump Sum Distritutions 337,656            
---Additional Fund Balance Use 337,656$                   

Total Fund Balance Use After Adjustments 7,024,356         

58,971,080$              

56,087,366$              

Premium Pay for Departments
Premium Pay

 Rate Increases
EMS - Salaries & Benefits 524,247            

Jail - Salaries & Benefits 1,425,345         
Sheriff/Security - Salaries & Benefits 399,443            

ADDU - Salaries & Benefits 85,081               
DA's Office - Salaries & Benefits 52,275               

Jubenile Court - Salaries & Benefits 59,667               2,546,058$                

Lump Sum Distributions w/Benefits 337,656            337,656$                   

58,971,080$              

Total General Fund Revenues Budget after Amendment

General Fund Expenditures Budget 
Total Approved Expenditures Budget - June 28, 2021

Total General Fund Expenditures Budget after Amendment

General Fund
Budget Amendment Request

7/19/2021

General Fund Revenues Budget 
Total Approved Revenues Budget - June 28, 2021

Fund Balance Approved 6/28/2021 Budget

110

Item 9d.



7/19/2021

Total Approved Revenues Budget - June 28, 2021 8,192,540$                    
American Rescue Plan Transfer to Special Services District 406,362$                        

Increase - Fund Balance Use 1,177$                            

8,598,902$                    

Total Approved Expenditures Budget - June 28, 2021 8,192,540$                    
---Premium Pay DCP/Animal Control - Includes Benefits 406,362$                        

Lump Sum Distributions - Includes Benefits 1,177$                            

8,598,902$                    

Total General Fund Revenues Budget after Amendment

Special Services District Expenditures Budget 

Total Special Services District Expenditures Budget after Amendment

Special Services District
Budget Amendment Request

Special Services District Revenues Budget

111

Item 9d.



Available Balance 8,542,211          

---Transfer to General Fund (2,546,058)        

---Transfer to Special Services District (406,362)            

Remaining Balance 5,589,791         

American Rescue Plan (COVID-19) Fund
7/19/2021

112

Item 9d.


	Top
	Item 5a.	Minutes
	2021.06.21 Minutes Regular
	2021.06.28 Minutes SCM

	Item 6a.	Delegation a_Tax
	COMMISSION MTG DIGEST PRESENTATION

	Item 7a.	Purchase a_Playground Equipment
	Purchase a_Playground Equipment

	Item 8a.	Board Appointments
	Board Appointments Packet

	Item 9a.	Other a_Surplus
	Other a_Surplus
	Other a_Surplus Resolution

	Item 9b.	Other b_Surplus Judicial Bldg
	Other b_Surplus Judicial Bldg Resolution
	Other b_Surplus Judicial Bldg

	Item 9c.	Other c_TJC Agreement
	Other c_TJC Agreement Resolution
	Other c_TJC Agreement

	Item 9d.	Other d_Budget Amendment
	Other d_ FY22 General Fund
	Other d_ FY22 Special Services District
	other d _FY22 ARP Fund Transfer

	Bottom

